VILLAGE OF COLONIE  rrank a preveati

DEPUTY MAYOR
VILLAGE HALL

2 THUNDER ROAD PATTY SCHWARZ LOCKART
COLONIE, NY 12205 TRUSTEE
(518) 869-7562 FAX (518) 464-0389 SO e UL
JAMES M. RUBINO MARK P. STEVENS
“A Place to MAYOR TRUSTEE
be Proud of villagehall@colonievillage.org JAMIE L. BLOT
www.colonievillage.org VILLAGE CLERK

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2025
6:30 P.M.

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Village of Colonie Planning Commission was
held at Village Hall, 2 Thunder Road, Albany, NY 12205, on Tuesday, October 7t 2025.

ROLL CALL: Chairman: Chris Dennis Present

Commissioners: John Martin Absent

Brittany Kendall Present

Kenny Hart Present

Jim Splonskowski Present

Alison Curran Present

John Lemperle Present

Alternate: Carl Kuentzel Present
Village Attorney: Victor Caponera Recused

Charles Dumas Present

Village Engineer: R.J. Laberge Present

Village Liaison: Frank Prevratil Present

Chairman Dennis opened the meeting at 6:30 P.M. Commissioner Hart led the Pledge of
Allegiance and requested that all electronic devices be turned off or muted. The
Commission reviewed the regular meeting minutes from September 2™, 2025.
Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner
Splonskowski seconded the motion.

VOTE: Unanimous to approve.

Luizzi Companies
1579 Central Avenue
Sketch Plan Review

Owen Harter was present from McFarland Johnson as the engineer for the Luizzi
Companies’ project at 1579 Central Avenue. Peter and Christian Luizzi were also present
as the developers from the Luizzi Companies. Mr. Harter explained that 1579 Central
Avenue is the site of the abandoned Albany Inn motel, which the applicant is proposing
to demolish and construct a car wash facility. This intended use is permitted in the
Commercial A district, consistent with the Village of Colonie code. Mr. Harter explained
that the applicant is proposing a 4,375 square foot single bay automated car wash bay,


mailto:villagehall@colonievillage.org

and an 1,800 square foot detailing shop with 3 bays and office space. The site is also
proposed to include 12 overhead vacuum spaces and 8 standard parking spaces. The site
would include 2 full access connections, with 1 to Central Avenue and 1 to Parkwood
Drive. The proposed plan complies with all Village of Colonie zoning requirements, as
both structures would be located within the required setbacks. Further, landscaping,
berms and fencing have been incorporated into the plan as a buffer with the residential
properties on the Northern and Eastern sides of the site.

Chairman Dennis stated that this is only a sketch plan review, and therefore there are no
detailed plans to review, such as landscaping or utility plans. At this time, the layout of
the site is being reviewed. Commissioner Hart asked if there would be any changes to the
existing curb cuts, to which Mr. Harter stated the size would be reduced, and Engineer
Laberge mentioned that a DOT Highway Work Permit would need to be obtained.
Commissioner Martin was not present but provided Chairman Dennis with a comment.
He suggested that the Central Avenue point of access be “right-in, right-out”. Mr. Peter
Luizzi stated that on the final drawings, they intend to have “right-in, right-out” with an
island. Commissioner Hart requested confirmation that anyone coming from the West
would enter the site through Parkwood Drive, to which Mr. Luizzi confirmed.
Commissioner Hart also asked if there would be signage, and Mr. Luizzi stated yes, and
that there would also be signage indicating that Parkwood Drive leads into a residential
neighborhood.

Chairman Dennis asked if there was an estimate for how much queuing space would be
needed. Mr. Luizzi offered that an assessment of the property was done, and the current
layout of the site was designed with that factor in mind. Chairman Dennis also mentioned
sound and asked for confirmation that most of the sound will be generated at the
commercial end of the property, to which Mr. Luizzi said yes. He explained that noise
from the dryers will be at the Central Avenue side of the site, and that all of the
equipment will be enclosed in the building. Commissioner Hart asked if the hours would
be from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. 7 days a week, and Mr. Luizzi said yes. He also asked if the
vacuums would be on outside of business hours, to which Mr. Luizzi said no. All
operations would shut down at the site at 8 p.m. Lighting on the site was also questioned,
and Mr. Luizzi offered that lighting plans would be included in the full submission, but it
would be laid out to be code compliant and have low impact on surrounding properties.

Commissioner Hart mentioned that the property is surrounded by trees and asked if the
fence indicated on the site plan would be where the building currently is. Mr. Harter
explained that there will be landscaping and a fence along the residential side of the
property, as the zoning code requires, which looks to be on the line where the building
currently is. Commissioner Hart asked what kind of material the fencing would be, and
Mr. Luizzi offered that they aren’t sure at this time, but it will likely be decorative, which
would be consistent with the aesthetic design of their other properties.

Chairman Dennis asked if the stormwater management plan could be defined further. Mr.
Harter explained that the Northwestern corner of the property is currently reserved for
stormwater management, but further investigation will be done to confirm that it’s



feasible. Chairman Dennis asked if there is an outlet to the Central Avenue storm sewers,
and Mr. Harter stated that ideally, there would be an extreme storm overflow connection,
but it still needs to be identified. Engineer Laberge will review this as well. Chairman
Dennis asked if there were any details yet regarding how much hard surface is currently
on the site, and how much there is proposed to be. Mr. Harter explained that most of the
lot is impervious, and the connection to Parkwood Drive is the only new addition. The
site is proposed to have 58% greenspace, but more detailed information would be
included in the full submission.

Chairman Dennis requested more information on the detailing component of the
operation. He asked for confirmation that there would be no service of vehicles, such as
oil changes. Mr. Luizzi confirmed that this would not be the case. Commissioner Kendall
asked if there would be overhead bay doors open, to which Mr. Luizzi stated they likely
would.

Commissioner Hart asked how tall the applicants have proposed both buildings to be. Mr.
Harter stated that it has not been fully designed yet, but it is understood that the
maximum building height by code is 40 feet. Commissioner Hart also asked if there
would be outside speakers, and Mr. Luizzi stated no. Commissioner Kendall asked if the
car wash would be run by an attendant, to which Mr. Luizzi said yes. Commissioner Hart
asked if the applicant plans to remove any trees prior to any Planning Commission
approvals. Mr. Luizzi stated that all disconnects have been completed, and they plan to
demolish the building within the next few weeks. The site will then be milled and cleaned
up. Commissioner Curran suggested that the “right-in” could be eliminated since any cars
coming from the East could enter the property through Parkwood Drive. Mr. Luizzi
explained that they would like the “right-in” entrance to catch any cars that may miss the
light.

Engineer Laberge offered that he would like to see what vegetation can be preserved on
the site and added that the berm requirement can be amended based on the amount. He
added that he agrees with the current layout of the site, and Acting Village Attorney
Dumas did not have any comments.

Chairman Dennis recognized that the meeting was not a public hearing but opened up the
floor to public comment. Mr. Joe Bianchini, Mordella Road, asked what the height of the
fence would be. Chairman Dennis mentioned that typically there would be a berm first of
2-3 feet, and then a 6-foot fence. Mrs. Patricia Bianchini, Mordella Road, expressed
concern with water consumption for the proposed use. Mr. Luizzi stated that a
consumption report can be provided, but most of the water is also recycled. Mrs.
Bianchini also mentioned that there is wildlife in the building now and wondered what
will happen once the building is demolished. Mr. Bianchini expressed concern with loud
music when people are drying and vacuuming their cars, like at Hoffman’s. Chairman
Dennis added that this operation is not like Hoffman’s with a large drying area at the end
of the bay. Further, Commissioner Hart stated that sound levels will also have to be
included in the full submission. Commissioner Curran suggested that signage be put up
regarding playing music while using the vacuums, and Mr. Luizzi agreed. Commissioner



Kendall also mentioned that the vacuums would be closed when the business is closed, as
per earlier confirmation. Mr. Luizzi stated that this operation differs from Hoffman’s in
that the vacuums are not free, so cars will have to go through the car wash to be able to
use the vacuums. They will receive a coin, or something like, to turn the vacuums on.

Mrs. Denise Nicholson, Mordella Road, asked for more information on stormwater
management. She offered that her property has been impacted by run-off from the current
site. Mr. Harter stated that ideally, there will be an infiltration basin that will follow NYS
water quality standards, and the property would de-water within 24-48 hours. Any on-site
water will drain to this open recessed area. However, further testing will be done so this
plan can be finalized. Mrs. Nicholson expressed concern that there will be standing water,
and Chairman Dennis explained that the Commission will require a design to prevent a
standing water pond at this location, and the intention of the stormwater management
plan is to ensure that the property is de-watered.

Mr. Robert Leitch, Mordella Road, asked for information regarding what kind of waste
will be generated, and wondered how the waste will be contained so that it doesn’t blow
around onto surrounding properties. Mr. Luizzi stated that there will be a dumpster, a
dumpster enclosure and a refuse container at each vacuum. Mr. Leitch stated that he can
hear dumpsters being picked up early in the morning, and Chairman Dennis stated that a
timeframe for dumpster pick-ups will be indicated in the submission. Mr. Leitch shared
that after speaking with 2 Hoffman’s locations, he found that sound from loud music and
vacuums are two of the biggest concerns. Mr. Luizzi added that the vacuums will be as
far away from the residential area as possible, and that they will check the sound levels at
the property lines. Mr. Christian Luizzi also added that vacuum technology has come a
long way in regard to sound. Mr. Leitch also asked if the lights would be dim at night,
and Mr. Luizzi stated that this would be addressed in the lighting plan.

There were no further comments or questions, and Chairman Dennis explained that the
applicant will be returning with a more detailed submission, addressing the comments
heard this evening.

Discussion

Chairman Dennis stated that a change had been made to the elevations for Town Fair
Tire, at 44 Wolf Road. They proposed adding gables to the building, and the update has
been added to the project file.

Chairman Dennis is also in receipt of a letter from Bohler Engineering regarding an
extension of the site plan approval for Taco Bell, at 1535-1537-1539 Central Avenue.
Attorney Dumas explained that site plan approval expires after 1 year if no building
permit has been issued. The Planning Commission has discretion to extend this approval
upon request. Attorney Dumas stated that a formal letter and resolution would be
provided to the applicant.



Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the request for an extension of the site
plan approval for 1535-1537-1539 Central Avenue until October 15™, 2026. This motion
was seconded by Commissioner Curran.

Vote: Unanimous to approve.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hart to adjourn the meeting.
Motion was seconded by Commissioner Lemperle.

VOTE: Unanimous to adjourn.

Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Hannah Curran
Deputy Village Clerk
Planning Coordinator
Village of Colonie



